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DESCRIBETHE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Parker House with its distinctive gambrel roof is situated 
about half way between the center of Old Saybrook and the center of 
Essex, Connecticut, on the Middlesex Turnpike, an ancient toll road. 
The surrounding land is semi-rural in character, on the way to becoming 
suburbanized. The one and one-half story house, 30 x 30 feet square, 
faces south on a corner lot. There are two trees on the site but little 
else in the way of planting.

The principal building on this corner site is a modern red, one 
story structure in a commercial "colonial revival" style, which houses 
offices and a cabinet shop. The red building is behind and to the right 
(northeast) of the Parker House, separated by about 30 feet. Both are on 
the same parcel according to the town map. For the purpose of this nom­ 
ination arbitrary lines 20 feet to the east and north of the house are 
established which together with the street lines to the west and south 
are considered the boundaries of the site.

Despite its address of 680 Middlesex Turnpike, the house faces 
the cross road, which is called Spring Brook Road Extension, and the ridge 
line of the house is parallel to this street. The roof from the ridge 
line forward is gambrel, while from the ridge line back it is a shed 
roof over the rear half of the house and the lean-to. The roof is 
covered with wood shingles.

In the front the lower section of the gambrel roof is steeply 
pitched, and flared at the eaves. At the west end the verge board has 
a groove along its lower edge. Across the front the roof has an over­ 
hang 13 inches, but no traces of drops can be found.

The exterior siding of the house is clapboards with four inches 
exposed to the weather, unpainted, and now a weathered grey in color. 
On the front, underneath the eaves on either side of the front door 
(which is not original), is a window with six-over-six sash. At the 
upper left of the door is a tiny two-pane window.

On the west facade, toward the front, is a second door. At the 
second floor level under the ridge line is a four-over-six window, and 
to the rear is a small two-over-two window. At first floor level are 
two six-over-six windows.

The rear (north) facade has a back door, a six-over-six window, 
and a modern picture window with small panes. The east facade is the 
plainest side of the house with three six-over-six sash.

The square chimney rises from the roof off center to the east 
and just behind the ridge line. Above the roof it is brick, with a cap 
of molded brick, while on the interior of the house the chimney is stone 
and is the chief feature of the interior arrangement.

The chimney's great square base in the cellar is ten and one- 
half feet square. The cellar itself is full size, running under the 
lean-to as well as the front section, indicating that the entire house 
was built at one time. Some of the first floor joists are undressed 
timbers.

In the south facade the front door is in front of the chimney 
but off center to the east, thereby indicating the arrangement of the 
interior floor plan. The west room is larger than the east room by a 
noticeable margin. The corner posts of the front section are cased.
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The chimney posts are not cased, and the rear corner posts in the lean-to 
are flared. The ceilings are low. The bottom edges of the ceiling 
joists are only an inch more than six feet from the floor. There are 
no summer beams, perhaps because the house is so small.

In the ceiling of the west room on the first floor are four hewn 
joists running from front to back between the end girt and the^chimney 
girt. At the top of the joists the upstairs floorboards are visible. 
There is no plaster ceiling. The walls of this room on three sides are 
wide vertical boards. Between these interior boards and the exterior 
clapboards the space is filled with corn husks and hay. The fourth side 
of the room is occupied by the fireplace and two simple, paneled doors, 
one leading down to the cellar and the other to the front passageway. 
The fireplace is 47 inches high and 64 inches wide with a much charred 
wooden lintel. The fireplace is lined with stone and has a stone hearth. 
To the left, at lintel level, is an oven. Indication from earlier 
surveys is that at one time there was paneling over the fireplace but 
this area is now plastered.

In the smaller, east room is a small brick fireplace with a 
brick arch, built into the stone chimney. This room has plastered walls
and ceiling.

Between the two rooms, in front of the chimney, the stairway 
rises from right to left from the front passageway. The front of the 
stairway has been closed in and covered with plaster; there is no railing. 
The chimney is not covered; the stairs simply run up along the exposed 
stone.

Upstairs the two rooms and hallway have the same floor plan as 
downstairs. The larger, west room has a brick fireplace and plastered 
walls. There is no structural ceiling, just 20th century wall board 
between the joists. The hallway has no ceiling at all, being open to 
the chimney and the roof framing. The east room has no fireplace, but 
the walls and ceiling are plastered. The gambrel roof gives these rooms 
considerably more headroom than would the conventional gable roof, which 
is an important consideration in so small a house. The upstairs is 
not now in use.

The lean-to is now a modern kitchen and dining area.
Having at one time in recent years served as a real estate office, 

the house is now once again used as a residence, leased by the owner to 
the present occupant.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The importance of the Parker House.is two fold. First, it is 

thought on.good authority to have been built in 1679, making it one of 
the oldest houses in 1 the/state. Second, its gambrel roof, unaltered 
for 300 years, is one of the very few of its type which have come down 
from- the 17th Century. .   . ..

The authority for the 1679 date is Elmer D. Keith. Mr. Keith 
supervised the Works Progress Administration Census of Old Buildings in 
Connecticut, edited the series of reports on old houses prepared by the 
Connecticut Society of the Colonial Dames in America, was a founder of 
the Antiquarian and Landmarks Society, Inc., of Connecticut and of the 
Connecticut League of Historical Societies, was a consultant to Old 
Sturbridge Village and Mystic Seaport, and wrote several monographs in 
the field.

Other early gambrel roof houses are known in Connecticut. One of 
them is the Glebe House in Woodbury. Another is the Webb House in Wethers- 
field. But both of these are larger and more elaborate structures dating 
from the mid-l8th century.   : i :

William Parker, who built the house, is thought to have come to 
Connecticut by way of the West Indies. He was one of 'the' "original pro­ 
prietors of Hartford with Rev. Thomas Hooker in 1636. Within several 
years he moved to the mouth of the Connecticut River to the area then 
called Saybrook Colony, where he later tiuirt this house (perhaps for his 
son, Joseph) before his death in 1686. Across the street from the house 
he operated a shop in which he made barrels for packing the shad caught 
each spring in the river.

After William Parker's death the house descended from'generation 
to generation in his family until the 1960*s. This continuous family 
ownership probably was helpful in preventing changes and alterations 
damaging to the house's historic character. Very little has changed 
structurally over the years and the original interior arrangement con- 
inues as well, with some modifications of trim and fireplaces. The Parker 
House is an unusually early example of a small, gambrel roof house, in­ 
tact, and unique in this area.

1. Anna D. Sheffield, comp., "William Parker House," in Old 
Houses of Connecticut series by the Connecticut Society of Colonial 
Dames in America, March 15, 1933, no pagination.
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